
City of Elk Run Heights 
Regular Council Meeting 

Located at Eddis Winstead Council Chambers 
December 8, 2020 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
Mayor Lundy called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. All present recited the Pledge of Allegiance. Roll call of 
Council Members: Present –Bass, Sallis, Smock, Ratchford, and Wilson. Quorum present.  
 
Ratchford/Bass to approve of the December 8, 2020 Agenda. Ayes-Five. Motion Carried. 
 
Wilson/Ratchford to approve of Consent Agenda - All items listed on the consent agenda will be enacted 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion unless a request is made prior to the time the council 
votes on the motion. a. Approve the November 10, 2020 regular meeting minutes b. City Clerk’s Reports 
as of November 30, 2020: Budget Report, Treasurer’s Report, Fund Report, Revenue and Expenditure 
Reports and Investment Report.  c. Approval of Building Inspection, Library, PeopleService Sewer/Water 
and Police reports Roll call vote: Ayes-Five.  
 
Ratchford/Sallis to approve Resolution Calendar – All items listed under the Resolution Calendar will be 
enacted by one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a request is made prior to 
the time Council votes on the motion. a. Resolution 3044 authorizing the payment of bills and transfers b. 
Resolution 3045 approving INRCOG to assist the City of Elk Run Heights develop a disaster recovery 
plan c. Resolution 3046 setting the date of Public Hearing for maximum property tax levy rate for January 
12, 2021. Roll call vote: Ayes-Five.  

 
Discussion: Presentation from Maggie Burger with Speer Financial for preliminary options for financing 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project. Maggie explained the financing is separate between Raymond 
and Elk Run. Currently the estimated total cost is $7.8 million, Elk Run is responsible for roughly $3.9 
million. Maggie explained there are good numbers here and feels the City will be able to get funding 
without using all its debt capacity which is $3.884. Maggie said the project will likely get underway this 
fiscal year but mainly happening in FY22 and FY23. Maggie’s suggestion for financing the 3.9 million 
debt: make a down payment from the money the City has collected & saved, with that a GO SRF for 
$1.55 million could be issued (a variety of revenue sources could be used to make payments) and the 
remainder $1.811 million would be funded by a 20yr 2% SRF loan (can only be paid with sewer revenue). 
Payments to GO SRF: this loan will produce a $95,000 - $100,000 interest payment. Take $50,000 Local 
Option Sales Tax leaving $46,000 to $49,000 which could be paid from the General Fund. Maggie 
emphasized that there will not be any property tax levied to pay for this, meaning we will pay with 
sources of income already available. To pay for the 2% SRF: The City currently has sewer revenues of 
$285,000, expenses of $215,00 leaving $70,000 in cash/yr. This loan is going to produce an interest 
payment of around $115,000/yr. Maggie said the City needs to bring in close to $135,000 because this 
type of loan requires the City to bring in 10% more than what is owed ($115,000). To cover this gap in 
revenue Maggie suggested the City raise the Capital Project fee to $80.00/quarter, the sooner the better. 
City Attorney Heather Prendergast asked where the “fluff” in the numbers is in the event the project goes 
over the projected costs. Maggie pointed out two options: the $50,000 of LOST and General Fund dollars 
or the City could add to the GO SRF loan, this could potentially increase property taxes. Maggie stated 
that since the City will be at less than half of the debt capacity, the GO SRF loan could go as high as 
$1.75 million. She also stated that it is highly recommended that the City have 100% of yearly expenses 
on hand for flexibility in covering unexpected costs. Councilor Ratchford asked about the maintenance 
and operating expenses listed, suggesting the number provided might not be accurate. It was confirmed 
there was a miscommunication of the amount that is to be paid by Raymond. City Clerk Eastman also 
informed Maggie of the additional revenue on tonight’s agenda that will increase the current cash amount 
in the WWTP fund. After discussion it was agreed the numbers will be reviewed, Maggie will update the 
numbers and move forward from there. Councilor Smock asked what the benefits are to the two types of 
loans. Maggie answered: if the City were to get only a sewer loan the only way you can pay it is with 
sewer revenues, not using any LOST or General Funds. Which means raising the utilities rates 
significantly. The GO SRF can be paid with any source of revenue and it does count against your debt 
capacity. Both are SRF and can be financed for 20 years, the only difference is the methods of repayment 
and how to divide the two loans. Mayor Lundy said we will need to consider raising the sewer rates but 



would like to wait to see the bids come in before deciding. Smock agreed with the Mayor but felt it would 
be a good idea to do a $20.00 increase now and adjust the amount after the bids come in; the more money 
the City has means a better financial position for loans. Prendergast agreed, the engineer’s estimates are 
available to base this decision from and it is inevitable the rates will increase. Ratchford feels it should be 
done as soon as possible. Councilor Wilson asked about any other revenue that can possibly be used. 
Lundy responded that there are some extra funds in the General Fund but the Lafayette Road project 
needs to be considered with these extra funds. Wilson conceded, acknowledging that could potentially be 
another $200,000 for the project.  
 
Smock/ Ratchford to approve resolution 3047 approving transfers to zero out unused fund balances. City 
Clerk Eastman explained that there was LOST funds of $5,319.00 sitting the Plaza Drive Reconstruction 
Fund that will be transferred to the WWTP Project. Additionally, there were some corrections to the 
Raymond Road Trailor Court Project that were fixed and leaving $147,698.52 from the sales of the lots 
that will be transferred to the WWTP Project. And lastly there was a correction to the year-end transfers 
for the Capital Improvement Funds of $64,180.00 that will be transferred to the WWTP Project as well. 
Thus, adding a total of $217,197.52 to the Sewer Project cash balance. Roll call vote: Ayes-Five. 
 
Ratchford/Wilson to approve resolution 3048 approving mayor to sign into employment contract on 
behalf of the City of Elk Run Heights with Brian Wirtz for building inspector duties. Roll call vote: Ayes-
Five. 
 
Wilson/Ratchford to approve request from Ronald Dillavou and Brandon Kotz for half of the cost for a new 
abstract for 100 Toneff Drive in an amount not to exceed $354.00. City Attorney Prendergast pointed out the 
contract stated they would pay for the abstract in the event the City did not have it. City Clerk Eastman stated 
the expenses will end up being around $3,000 in the end. Councilor Ratchford stated he feels we can pay half, 
pointing out they are doing a good job already. Councilor Bass stated they signed the contract stating it was 
not the City’s responsibility. Ratchford the City received $43,500 from the house and as a good City he feels 
we can pay for half of the abstract. Councilor Sallis agreed with Ratchford. Ayes-Four. Nay-Bass. Motion 
Carried. 

 
Wilson/Ratchford to approve request from City Clerk to reimburse homeowners of 111 Michigan Drive the costs 
of sewer back up in an amount of $5,000.00 for costs of replacement of furnishings, labor hours, and their 
deductible. City Clerk Eastman explained there was a sewer backup and the City’s insurance denied the claim for 
the homeowners. Eastman explained the City has a moral obligation to pay benefit, and the insurance company 
will reimburse us 75% of up to $5,000 we pay out. Councilor Ratchford asked why the City is at fault. Mayor 
Lundy stated there was a call to City Hall earlier that day asking if there were any issues with the City sewer, and 
the City Clerk unknowingly said no and did not call PeopleService to lift the man whole to investigate. This 
resulted in a backup into the resident’s home. Councilor Wilson stated there is no discussion then, we take care of 
it. Ratchford agreed. Ayes-Five. Motion Carried. 
 
Ratchford/Sallis to approve Ordinance 269 an ordinance amending the code of ordinances of the city of 
Elk Run Heights, Iowa, by amending provisions pertaining to title 10 Vehicles and Traffic, Chapter 10.04 
Traffic Code, Article IX. Parking, Section 10.04.440 Residential Parking, first reading. City Attorney 
Prendergast stated she fixed the wording where there was concern. Roll call vote: Ayes-Three. Nays- 
Bass and Wilson.  
 
Discussion/Possible Action: Adding speed bumps to various areas within the City. Council discussed some of the 
area’s they would consider adding these. It was acknowledged these speed bumps cannot be in place during the 
winter due to plowing. Councilor Sallis, having been concerned they would cost much more, stated this is 
something for the community and is all for them. After discussing the lengths, the City Clerk was asked to get 
measurements for the roads Council is recommending, Shirley Avenue, Elk Run Road, and Lafayette Road. City 
Engineer Mike Dryden recommended only doing the speed bumps in a few locations to see if Council is satisfied 
with the results before purchasing for all the streets that have issues. Council agreed to get measurement and 
pricing and discuss at the January meeting. 
 
Discussion: Possibly adding franchise fee with MidAmerican Energy. City Clerk Eastman explained she had 
gotten some information regarding franchise fees. City Attorney Prendergast stated she understood this could 



impact the Local Option Sales Tax funds. Eastman said yes, but the way she understood it is it nullifies 1% of 
whatever percent they implement. So, if they added a 2% franchise fee it would only bring in 1%, but Eastman 
stated she was not certain. Councilor Bass stated if the City is going to be increasing everyone’s sewer rate, this 
would be adding additional tax on the residents. Eastman agreed but responded the funds could also be used for 
the sewer plant, street or anything needed. Council agreed to leave well enough alone. Eastman informed the 
Council she only brought this up to see if there is interest; if they wanted more information someone would come 
in to present the details. Councilor Wilson asked Prendergast her thoughts. Prendergast responded her and 
Eastman will investigate what exactly this means and if it may be something she would recommend.  
 
Discussion: Where to put funds from the sale of 100 Toneff Drive. Mayor Lundy said it was suggested to put the 
funds into the Wastewater Treatment Plant project. Councilor Ratchford asked for the net amount of the sale. City 
Clerk Eastman said it is yet to be determined, she is waiting on the final bill from the attorney’s office. Ratchford 
mentioned there is the possibility of water main breaks and other things that could come up, and maybe it should 
stay in the General Fund for now. Councilor Smock stated that the acquiring of this property was an act of 
beautification for the community. Smock suggested using the money towards additional beautification projects. 
She said with the projects going on at Mayor’s Park, the one area still needs updated is the main shelter. Smock is 
planning to apply for grants for the updating, but these revenues would help with the match. Ratchford asked if 
the money can stay in the General Fund until a specific use is decided. Eastman responded yes, but once the 
budget amendment is underway there will need to have been a decision made.  
 
Discussion: Setting of the date of Budget meetings. Council agreed to January 19, 2020.  
 
Public discussion: None 

 
Mayors/Council/Engineer Reports: Councilor Smock stated she intends to donate her wages for the past 
year’s work on the City Council to the Willow Run Dog Park and wanted to extend an invitation for 
anyone else that would like to donate a portion of theirs, it would be greatly appreciated. 

 
Ratchford/Wilson to adjourn at 7:30 p.m. Ayes-Five. Motion carried. 

 
Attest: 

 
 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
Kristi Lundy, Mayor      Julie Eastman, City Clerk 


